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April 25, 2017 
 
 
Subject: Letter of Clarification No. 1 

Invitation to Bid No S12-S26205 Personal Radiation 
Detectors for the Mayor’s Office of Homeland Security 
 

To All Prospective Suppliers: 
 
This Letter of Clarification is issued for the following reason: 
 
1) To revise the above referenced solicitation’s bid due date as follows: 

 
 Sealed bids, in duplicate, will be received by the City Secretary of the City of Houston, in 

the City Hall Annex, Public Level, 900 Bagby, Houston, Texas 77002 until no later than 
Thursday, April 27, 2017 at 10:30 A.M., and all bids will be opened and publicly 
read in the City Council Chamber, City Hall Annex, Public Level, 900 Bagby at 11:00 
A.M. on that date for the purchase of Caustic Soda. 

 
2) Clarify the solicitation document and respond to questions/inquires as follows: 

 

Section Paragraph/Topic Question 
COH-MYRS. HOMELAND SECURITY 
OFFICE RESPONSE/COMMENTS: 

n/a 
Intended Unit 

Quantity 

There are no intended 
quantities listed in the 
RFP.  On the Place Bid 
Webpage the quantity of 
5000 is listed.  Can the 
city provide insight into 
the intended yearly 
delivery quantities? 

The Place Bid webpage is not the official city 
posting for bids.  However, the first year 
projections for PRDs is 2000-2500 PRDs.  
Second year projection is at probably at least 
1000 units but will not be determined until 9 
months into the distribution process.  Initial 
long range projections are an estimate of 3000 
PRDs although that number could increase 
after assessment. 

2.1.16 
PC 

Communication 

The requirement notes 
Bluetooth 4.0 and cell 
phone/hotspot.  Could the 
city clarify if the 
requirement is meant for 
remote monitoring 
(reachback) AND local 
PC connection typically 
used to configure PRD 
and offload data locally? 

Yes.  The connection of the PRD to a Bluetooth 
4.0 capable hotspot would be for either 1) 
remote monitoring or 2) for configuring PRD 
and data offload but not simultaneously. 
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2.1.16 
PC 

Communication 

Is there a requirement for 
local PC connection via 
USB/serial to configure 
instruments and offload 
log/maintenance/performa
nce data? 

N0.  There is a requirement for PC connection 
for configuration and data offloading via 
Bluetooth.  USB/serial conection as well would 
be welcome but not requried. 

18.1 

Stock and 
Warehouse 

Facilities 

Can the city define the 
quantity requirements that 
need to be available 
within 24 hours as well as 
times when this clause 
would be used? 

This is from a previous project and is not 
applicable.  Quarterly deliver rates will be 
established and the City will work with the 
vendor for delivery dates. 

6.0 Training 

Is the 3 day training one-
time only, or 3 day 
training every year? 

Up to three days of consecutive training are 
being requested. This training would address 
administrative issues, configuation and 
advance uses of the equipment. 

2.1.18 Evaluation PRDs 

 Will the City provide 
individual test results of 
each of the offerors PRDs 
to the offeror upon 
completion of the 1 month 
trial? 

Feedback on vendor's individual products may 
be provided but evaluation forms will remain 
confidential.  

2.1.18 Evaluation PRDs 

What type of testing will 
the City perform to 
determine if the PRD 
meets the needs of the 
users? 

Functionality-Test units will be provided to 
select users for deployment and evaluation 
using real time events. Test units will also be 
evaluated against known test sources verify 
specifications provided by vendor. 

2.0 
Environmental 

Conditions 

Section 3.3.3 details 
operating temperatures, 
however no mention of 
accurate performance in 
various temperatures are 
stated.  Houston is one of 
the most difficult cities to 
operate radiation 
detectors in, due to the 
wide ambient temperature 
ranges that the units 
operate in (hot summer 
day, air conditioned 
car/office, cold winter day, 
high solar loading, etc). 
 During evaluation testing, 
will the City test dose rate 
accuracy (low (Am241), 
medium (Cs137) and high 
(Co60)) and detector 
response across the 
entire operating 
temperature range?   Testing of all specifications is a possibility. 
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2.1.1  Gamma 

Could the specification be 
rewritten as: " CsI(Tl) (3cc 
or more) and GM tube, or  
equivalent detectors to 
meet specifications in 
Section 2 and 3".  The 
reason is because if the 
offerer can meet the 
performance 
requirements outlined in 
Section 2 and 3, the 
detector types should not 
matter. yes or city approved equal. 

2.1.5 Alarm Type 

Alarm types are given, but 
there are no requirements 
for the types of alarms 
which are typically used in 
other STC cities 
associated with a dose 
monitoring tool like a 
PRD.  Alarms for count 
rate, dose rate and safety 
alarms for dose should be 
defined and present.   

Alarm settings will be provided to vendor upon 
contract award. 

3.3.3 Operating temp 

The operating temp is 
supplied in the 
requirement, however, 
often in the Houston 
environment, units will be 
exposed to multiple 
temperature shocks per 
day (defined by ANSI 
N42.34 -2016, section 
7.2).  We feel it would be 
in the best interest of the 
City to request 
compliance to this 
requirement as well as 
field simulate it during the 
evaluation phase.   Noted 
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2.1.11 Time to alarm 

The time to alarm and 
response time to alarm 
(2.1.13) are given, 
however there are no 
specifications with respect 
to false alarm rate in 
various radiation 
backgrounds, or operation 
in changing radiation 
backgrounds (such as 
encountering high NORM 
from sand/building 
materials).  With a huge 
square mile footprint, 
Houston has unique 
challenges over other 
STC cites whose radiation 
monitoring is confined to 
areas significantly smaller 
than Houston's.  Local 
Border Patrol users 
complain of false alarms 
all the time due to these 
background changes.  We 
recommend that the City 
consider defining time to 
alarm as well as defining 
an acceptable false alarm 
rate in different 
backgrounds.  In addition, 
this requirement should 
be tested during the 
sample evaluation. Noted 

2.0 
Minimum 

Specifications 

Fielding large volumes on 
PRDs into an area new to 
radiation monitoring 
requires a rugged and 
robust instrument.  To 
limit long term repair 
costs and keep total cost 
of ownership as low as 
possible, the city should 
consider requesting data 
on Mean Time Between 
Failure (MTBF) and 
historical repair data 
beyond the first year of 
warranty.  

This can be provded by vendors and 
considered during the evaluation phase. 
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2.1.10 
Dose rate 
accuracy 

The requirement details 
dose rate accuracy +/- 
20% without mentioning 
the reference energy(ies).  
Recording dose rates for 
reference should require 
accuracy across the 
entire energy range (low 
(Am241), medium 
(Cs137) and high (Co60)).  
The City should consider 
amending the 
requirement to reflect 
including linearity 
references as well.   

 The +/- 20% would apply for medium (Cs137). 
Additional capabilities will be considered. 

2.1.15 
Calibration 

Requirement 

Calibrating to 100R/h 
requires a significantly 
large source(s).  Lowering 
the upper limit to 25mR/h 
or even 10R/h would 
allow the City to perform 
their own calibrations 
more easily.  A similar 
setup has been 
completed in New York to 
support their STC 
program.   The equipment should be rated as specified.  

3.3.6 COTS Battery 

Would the city consider 
that the "PRD shall 
accept readily available 
Alkaline batteries (AA and 
AAA)" as an acceptable 
requirement? Yes. AA or AAA type batteries are preferred. 

3.3.5 Drop Distance 

The specification calls for 
a 2ft drop without cover, 
not noting the substrate 
the PRD will be dropped 
onto.  The ANSI N42.34 -
2016 standard calls for a 
1.5m drop onto concrete.  
We feel it is in the best 
interest of the City to 
follow the ANSI 
requirement, rather than 
develop their own to avoid 
high failure rates 

PRDs are required to meet ANSI standard 
N42.32 2016 as mentioned in another portion 
of the specifications list. 
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Sect A Hire Houston First 

 
The original RFP includes 
the Hire Houston First 
requirement. During the 
pre-bid conference, 
bidders were informed 
that this requirement 
would be removed in 
clarifications to be 
provided at a later time. 
At least one potential 
bidder is a local woman 
owned small business 
who has serviced the 
Houston area for 
decades. This company is 
registered as a Hire 
Houston First company 
and designated as a 
Local Business. In light of 
this information and in the 
interest of supporting the 
local Houston economy, 
could the removal of this 
requirement be 
reconsidered? 

Houston First requirement is removed for this 
purchase. 

4.0 1 

Are there time constraints 
as to when a loaner unit 
needs to be in the hands 
of the City once the City 
notifies the offeror of the 
PRD with a warranty 
issue? 

The city should receive loaner units within a 
reasonable time frame (if requested). 

5.0 1 

RFP states each PRD is 
supposed to be shipped 
with a Inventory controlled 
sticker and a disk 
containing region 
specified data fields - 
does each PRD need to 
be shipped with a CD? 

The PRD will be shipped with the label affixed.  
The CD referenced will be shipped to the STC 
office with the shipment (one CD per 
shipment). 

5.0 1 

The RFP states  the PRD 
needs to ship "with a disk 
containing region 
specified data fields for 
use in an inventory 
tracking system in a .csv 
format."  What are the 
contents of the region 
specified data fields? 

These values will be sent to the vendor upon 
contract issuance but will include such items as 
serial number, make, model, original calibration 
date etc. 

n/a Bid Response 

Is there a page number 
limit to the supporting 
documents that can be 
submitted with the bid? No 
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n/a Place Bid 

On the Place Bid web 
page there is only one 
field for the PRD price 
inclusive of calibrations, 
repairs, and maintanence 
services.  For what period 
of time are these 
calibrations, repairs and 
support services 
supposed to be supplied? 

The warrantee is for one year.  The contract 
will allow additional services such as repair and 
support on an as needed basis to be charged 
to the contract amount. 

3.2.1 Operating system 

There are 3 distinct 
requirements within this 
requirement.  The first 
appears to be a windows 
based dose management 
SW that tracks users' 
dose.  Is there a 
requirement for how this 
SW receives its data from 
the PRD? 

The common connection method for updates 
and downloading data will be used to retrieve 
dose levels as well. 

3.2.1 Operating system 

There are 3 distinct 
requirements within this 
requirement.  The 2nd 
outlines a mobile device 
app for logging data and 
alarms and ability to track 
events on integrated 
mapping systems.  Most 
apps are "pass through" 
apps where data is 
passed to a central server 
for data storage and 
viewing on integrated 
maps.  Then the data is 
viewed on the mobile 
device and removed 
when the app is closed.  It 
is possible to make an 
app where device history 
and alarms are stored in 
memory on the device, 
however the device 
memory quickly fills up, 
battery life goes to 
typically  <2 hours on the 
mobile device, and the 
mobile device becomes 
"evidence" if there is a 
law enforcement case, 
removing it from service.   
Perhaps the City would 
consider alternative 
methods such as a basic 
information app without 
data storage that 
interfaced with DNDO 
sponsored applications 
such as RadResponder to 
store data remotely?  

The specifications of app development will be 
discussed in detail upon award of the contract.  
The use of data "passthrough" is requried as 
well as use of the app to view current dose and 
dose rates.  Any information stored on the 
device (hotspot) will need to be encrypted. 



Page 8 of 8 

 Note:  Product samples must be supplied within 10 business days of request 
and will be returned upon evaluation/review by the City 

 
 

 
This Letter of Clarification will be considered part of the solicitation referenced above. 
 
Furthermore, it is the responsibility of each Supplier to obtain any previous Letter(s) of 
Clarification associated with this solicitation. 
 
 
 
Martin L. King 
Division Manager 
832-393-8705 
 
 
cc: Public Works & Engineering 
 File 
 


